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Memorandum 

To:  Metropolitan Planning Commission 

From:  Michael A. Brusseau, Senior Planner 

Date:  December 2, 2014 

File #:   11-D-14-OB 

Subject: Similar Use Determination –  

 ‘Private club’ in the I-3 (General Industrial) zone 

 

Request: 

The City of Knoxville Building Inspections and Permitting Department referred 

the applicant to MPC for the purpose of determining if a ‘private club’ is 

appropriate as a permitted use in the I-3 (General Industrial) zoning district, on 

the basis that it could be deemed a similar use to ‘eating and drinking 

establishments,’ which are listed as a permitted use in the I-3 zoning district.   

 

Authority:  

 

MPC is given the authority to make this similar use determination by the City of 

Knoxville Zoning Ordinance.  The uses permitted section of the I-3 (General 

Industrial) zone, (Article 4, Section 2.3.2, B, 4 of the Knoxville Zoning Ordinance) 

includes a statement that reads, “Other uses of the same general character as those 

listed in this section as permitted uses and deemed appropriate by the planning 

commission.” The similar use determination application is the most appropriate 

process for MPC to make this determination. 

Background: 

This application was submitted by Alex Lozano, so that MPC could consider the 

appropriateness of allowing a ‘private club’ in the I-3 zoning district.  The property 

that is being proposed for this use is 1201 Hilton Rd. (CLT# 107AC013), located at 

the south end of Hilton Rd., south of Middlebrook Pike.  It should be noted, 

however, that approval of this use determination would apply not only to this 

particular property, but would establish a ‘private club’ as a permitted use within 

any I-3 or I-4 zoning district within the City Limits of Knoxville.   



Findings: 

It is the opinion of staff that a ‘private club’ is not appropriate within the I-3 zoning 

district, as a permitted use or use permitted on review.  This application was 

accepted on the applicant’s premise that a ‘private club’ is a similar use to ‘eating 

and drinking establishments’, which are listed as permitted uses in the I-3 zone.  

‘Eating and drinking establishments’ are not specifically defined in the zoning 

ordinance.  But ‘restaurants’, which are the most similar use to eating and drinking 

establishments, are defined as ‘establishments where food and drink is prepared, 

served and consumed primarily within the principal building.’  Restaurants are also 

generally open to the public, not just for members.  The applicant’s attached use 

description states that there will not be a full kitchen (all food brought in from 

elsewhere) and the club will be for members only or for rental events, which could  

lead to an interpretation that the use be classified as an event facility, which is also 

not permitted in the I-3 zone. 

A ‘private club’ is defined in the Zoning Ordinance as follows; “An organization 

catering exclusively to members and their guests, or premises and building for 

recreational or athletic purposes which are not conducted primarily for gain, 

providing that any vending stands, merchandising or commercial activities are 

conducted only as required generally for the membership of such club.”  MPC staff 

is in agreement with the City that the proposed use is most appropriately classified 

as a ‘private club.’  Since a ‘private club’ is clearly defined in the ordinance and is 

specifically listed as a permitted use in the O-1, O-2, C-2, C-3, C-4 and C-6 zones, 

staff is of the opinion that the intent of the ordinance regulations is to distinguish 

between a ‘private club’ and an ‘eating and drinking establishment.’, therefore the 

policy established by the zoning ordinance is that a ‘private club’ should be located 

on a property within one of the six zoning districts that does clearly permit the use.  

It should be noted that the I-4 zone lists “Any use permitted in the I-3 zoning 

district” as a permitted use in that zone.  So, I-3 permitted uses would also be 

permitted in the I-4 zone. 

Staff Recommendation: 

DENY a “private club”, as a permitted use in the I-3 (General Industrial) zone.  

The above factors lead MPC staff to conclude that a ‘private club’ should not be 

classified as an appropriate similar use to ‘eating and drinking establishments’ and 

should therefore not be permitted in the I-3 zone.   
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